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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007

(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board may then ask the applicant any questions it may have. And, then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all the public hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will try to render a decision this evening; however, we have up to 62 days to make a determination. And, I would ask that if you have a cell phone please turn it off, so that we won’t be interrupted. And, also I also would like to remind everyone when you speak you must use the microphone and there are two microphones available one in the center here and one off to the side. And, both of those microphones come off the stand so you can take them off if you need to walk down. I’d also like to mention that all Board Members do make site visits and have gone to all of the properties prior to the meeting. Roll call, please.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY








       DAVID DONOVAN, ESQ.


ABSENT:

RUTH EATON

(Time Noted – 7:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007               (Time Noted – 7:04 PM) 


JOSE CAPELLA



101 BREWER ROAD, NBGH







(105-2-3.2) R-3 ZONE




Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a sunroom on the rear of residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening is Jose Capella, 101 Brewer Road.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Straley: Good evening. My name is Steve Straley. I represent Vinyl Tech …

Ms. Gennarelli: Is that microphone on? I’m sorry. Could you just check and see if the power is on?

Mr. Straley: Now it is.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Straley: My name is Steve Straley; I represent Vinyl Tech. I am here this evening for Mr. & Mrs. Capella. What we’re here for this evening is a three-season enclosure on the rear of their home. The reason we are here this evening is for a rear yard setback. The existing is 35 ft and the proposed will be 25 ft.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: I do.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, Mr. Hughes?

Mr. Hughes: There is a 5 ft utility easement in there. Is this your map; are you familiar with this map?

Mr. Straley: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Will you show me where that addition is to the property line?

Mr. Straley approached

Mr. Straley: Right there, a little 10x10.

Mr. Hughes: So you are supposed to have 40 ft back there, not 35? You can go back.

Chairperson Cardone: I think what he said is they currently have 35. 

Mr. Hughes: They are supposed to have 40?

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: They are looking for 25?

Chairperson Cardone: Right. Any other questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please stand and state your name and address.

Mr. Donovan: May I, if I can just …?

Chairperson Cardone: Sure.

Mr. Donovan: On the Central Hudson Electric easement what’s there if anything?

Mr. Straley: Power lines.

Mr. Donovan: How far are they away from the house?

Mr. Straley: The power lines have got to be, I’d say about 70 ft. I didn’t actually measure it, that’s just an approximation.

Mr. Donovan: Even though it’s a matter of my own curiosity, how was this lot created?

Mr. Straley: How was it created?

Mr. Donovan: Yes.

Mr. Straley: I don’t understand the question.

Mr. Donovan: Was this part of a sub-division?

Mr. Straley: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: It’s part of a sub-division.

Mr. Donovan: It’s just a very oddly created lot.

Mr. Hughes: It is.

Chairperson Cardone: Do you know approximately when it was created?

Mr. Straley: About 10 years ago.

Mr. Donovan: That’s all.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else? If not, I would like to entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                     John McKelvey: Yes

                                     Brenda Drake: Yes

                                     Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                     Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                     James Manley: Yes

                                     Grace Cardone: Yes

                                                                            Ruth Eaton: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Straley: Thank you.







(Time Noted – 7:08 PM)

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007        (Resumption for decision: 9:32PM)

JOSE CAPELLA



101 BREWER ROAD, NBGH







(105-2-3.2) R-3 ZONE




Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a sunroom on the rear of residence.

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the first application of Jose Capella, 101 Brewer Road, seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a sunroom on the rear of home.  This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I think they have an awful tight shaped lot there to work with and plenty of land but quite narrow.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to approve the application.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                     John McKelvey: Yes

                                     Brenda Drake: Yes

                                     Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                     Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                     James Manley: Yes

                                     Grace Cardone: Yes

                                                                            Ruth Eaton: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.







(Time Noted – 9:33 PM)

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007                  (Time Noted – 7:08 PM) 

DARREN DOCE



BELLEVUE ROAD, NBGH







(99-2-32.1)  R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area and front yard setback to build a new single-family residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant this evening is Darren Doce, Bellevue Road.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Raab: For the record, my name is Jim Raab. I am with the engineering firm of Vincent J. Doce Associates; I am here to represent Darren Doce on this application for a rear (s/b front) yard and lot area variance located on Bellevue Avenue (99-2-32.1). We’re requesting a front yard, I’m sorry, a front yard variance for 32.33 ft versus 40 in an area that is basically… all the houses are much closer than what we are requesting a variance for the front yard. Also it’s one of the larger lots in the sub-division at 12,000 sq ft only 500 ft short of what’s required in the zone. And, it will be hooked up to Town water and sewer, that’s shown on the plan that was submitted to the Zoning Board and again we have it graded as we normally try to do these days. Also we didn’t feel it was necessary to push the house back like we normally do because we have a side entrance driveway on this one and we know how the Zoning Board likes to keep as many cars, keep cars off away from the road as possible. It also goes down and in so there wasn’t going to be any standing cars up here it’s a little too steep for that. It’s not a substantial variance because again, as stated earlier that, most of the houses are closer, much closer than the 32.33 feet we are requesting here. That’s pretty much it.

Mr. McKelvey: Is it a spec house?

Mr. Raab: What?

Mr. McKelvey: Spec house?

Mr. Raab: We’re not really sure yet, O.K. because there is still an outside chance that, Darren bought it as an investment, but it may end up being built owned by the brother but we don’t know yet.

Ms. Drake: How long ago did he purchase it?

Mr. Raab: About I think about two or three months ago I am not quite sure. Oh, six months, I am sorry, six months ago. 

Mr. Hughes: You said that you have water and sewer there, on that, available?

Mr. Raab: Yes, it’s right here. This wouldn’t be possible without it.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. And, you need 500 feet on the lot size.

Mr. Raab: That’s a questionable thing but I’ll go with that, this is again, lot areas shouldn’t really apply in this case but a that’s what we applied for, that’s one variance.

Mr. Hughes: You know it’s not an automatic thing.

Mr. Raab: No.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?

Ms. Drake: The house that’s behind that, the lot there, how far away is that? You have shown that one house behind there.

Mr. Raab: Here is the house here and the other house is right here. Based on the scale this map is at it’s probably going to end up being a little over 120 feet from corner to corner.

Ms. Drake: O.K. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Yes, we’ll start with the lady in the back. Please give your name and address.

Ms. Figueroa: My name is Carmen Figueroa, I live at 29 Stewart Avenue in Newburgh and my question for you sir is…

Mr. Raab: We’re right here. We’re here, you’re right there.

Ms. Figueroa: That’s the question I was going to ask. My house is there and you are proposing to build where?

Mr. Raab: Right behind well not behind, diagonally…

Chairperson Cardone: Would you like to come up and get a closer look? You may do that. 

Ms. Figueroa: Thank you.

Ms. Figueroa approached.

Ms. Gennarelli: And, Jim that mic comes off of that stand.

Mr. Raab: I have a problem with my hand, holding that, that’s why I like having the stand, so. 

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K.

Ms. Figueroa: My property is here and where are you building that?

Mr. Raab: Right here. Here let me show you on this side too. O.K. Right here. O.K.? We’re here. O.K.?

Ms. Figueroa: Thank you.

Ms. Palmer: Will you show me the lot?

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you identify yourself for the record, into the mic? Thanks.

Ms. Palmer: Sure. Tammi Palmer, 19 Bellevue Road.

Ms. Palmer approached and Mr. Raab pointed out areas on the maps.

Mr. Raab: Right here, right across the street.

Ms. Palmer: So you’re going to build right in front of my house?

Mr. Raab: That’s not really the front of your house, but … I don’t know that’s going to come over … here this is your house here …

Ms. Palmer: In front of my house or in front of Fran’s house?

Mr. Raab: Here, I’ll show you the same way. This is an aerial. This is your house here, O.K.? Fran would be next door?


Ms. Palmer: Right.

Mr. Raab: It would be in front of Fran’s house.

Ms. Palmer: O.K. Can I ask another question?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. Could you speak right into the microphone, please? 

Ms. Palmer:  Yes, can we know what the lot dimensions are so we can understand why you would need a front setback?

Mr. Raab: Sure. Not a problem. O.K.? The dimensions of this lot are it’s 120 ft wide, it has 120 ft road frontage and 100 ft deep so that makes it 12,000 sq ft. What happens is because it’s only 100 ft deep; it makes it very difficult to place a house on it without getting either a rear yard or a front yard variance. You would need to put a 20 ft wide house and it’s not, it’s just not effective.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes?

Ms. Bloomer: I have a petition.

Chairperson Cardone: Would you please…

Ms. Bloomer: I have a petition signed by neighbors…

Chairperson Cardone: Could you identify yourself and your address?

Ms. Bloomer: I am Angie Bloomer, 8 Boulder Road.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Ms. Bloomer: And, we had a guardrail put up and our main concern that it not be taken down because oil trucks and other trucks and vehicles have slid off of this road and the Town has put it up for our safety and once …

Mr. Raab: I don’t think there will be a problem with that.

Ms. Bloomer: You don’t? 

Mr. Raab: No, no.

Ms. Bloomer: Well, I have a petition that I’d like…

Mr. Raab: There is going to have to be a spot in the, well they didn’t show it but, oh, there is not going to be a problem with that because we’re not anywhere’s near it. The driveway is this side, the driveway will be this to the east, no the south side of the guardrail. The guardrail won’t be touched.

Ms. Palmer: Thank you. Would you like this? (to the Board)

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, would you like to read it or…?

Ms. Palmer: No. I’ll just give it to you.

Ms. Palmer approached with the petition.

Mr. Raab: Am I correct that the petition is to keep the guardrail?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Raab: I’d like to go on record that the guardrail will not be moved. Not by this construction anyway.

Chairperson Cardone: I can read the petition. 

We the undersigned are in receipt of a Notice of Hearing from the Town of Newburgh, NY Zoning Board of Appeals dated the 9th of July 2007 concerning variances sought by Darren Doce for the premises located on Bellevue Road. This letter is to inform the Board of our opposition to the variances Daren Doce is seeking. First and foremost we are opposed to any removal or shortening of the guardrail on Bellevue Road. The Town installed the guardrail for safety reasons after many dangerous events threatened the safety of homes and individuals in this area as well as possible harm to the environment. Bellevue Road is very narrow in this area and off street parking may become an issue. A new residence at this particular location would encroach on the privacy and safety of others already established in this neighborhood. We ask the Board to have this letter entered into the record and to consider the negative effects of granting the area variances sought by Mr. Doce and allowing the residence to be built on said lot. We thank the Board for any consideration of this letter.

I think the matter of the off street parking was addressed.

Mr. Raab: Yes, it was.

Ms. Bloomer: O.K. Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes?

Mr. Ryan: Just in the sense of the driveway, oh, Ken Ryan from 15 Bellevue Road.

Mr. Ryan approached and Mr. Raab pointed out areas on the maps.

Mr. Ryan: You’re driveway entrance is where?

Mr. Raab: Here, you’re up here and we’re down here. Right across from Palmer, the driveway entrance is right across from Palmer.

Mr. Ryan: Which is where the, is exactly where the guardrail in question is.

Mr. Raab: No, the guardrail starts right here. No, the guardrail is here.

Mr. Ryan: So, it’s going to be starting just off of …that’s a very steep grade…it’s just off of…oh, O.K., and it looks to be a single family residence, 3 bedroom bi-level.

Mr. Raab: Right.

Mr. Ryan: That was my question I heard that it was going to be a multi-family. Is this…(inaudible)?

Mr. Raab: Absolutely not.

 (inaudible)

Mr. Raab: (inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you use the microphone, please?

Mr. Ryan: We were wondering if they were going to be totally clearing the lot and then I guess re-landscaping? Or will it be a total removal of trees?

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Raab, could you answer that question?

Mr. Ryan: Because they did a lot, just recently like here on Stewart (pointing to the map) and they completely removed all the trees and …

Mr. Raab: There wasn’t anything there, believe me when I tell you, there wasn’t anything there worth saving. I know that lot like the back of my hand and there was nothing there to save.

Mr. Ryan: And, now which lot are you talking about?

Mr. Raab: Not like this lot. I am talking about the lot that they cleared. Across (inaudible)

Mr. Ryan: Right, and that was…

Mr. Raab: There was nothing in there to save and they made it…the lot was in such bad condition as far as junk that they had no choice but to wipe it clean. They had no way of getting to the stuff. It was piles and piles and piles of garbage. Some of it is still there.

Mr. Ryan: Is that house going to be built on that lot there?

(inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Could you speak into the microphone, please?

Mr. Ryan: …that’s going to be what Bellevue Road? 14?

Mr. Raab: I don’t know they have to give it, you have to get a Building Permit before they give you a lot number, you know, a street number.

Mr. Ryan: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Ryan: Thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes?

Ms. Palmer: Hi, Tammi Palmer, 19 Bellevue Road, one of our concerns is that we have a lot of development going on (inaudible). This development is going to directly impact my husband and I. It’s going to be right in front of us. When we purchased our house, we purchased it because of the beauty in front of us. We will be directly impacted more than our neighbors. That driveway is immediately in front of us. We have difficulty getting out of our driveway as it is in the winter. That takes away the entire woods in front of us; there will be nothing left. I mean, I know that not many people care about the animals up here, but we do. And, we have animals that go through that. It’s been vacant land for 50 some odd years, untouched until now. We have an incredible amount of development going on near our property in the last two years. The lots that have been bought up, have been apparently bought up by the same people and they are stripping whatever’s been going on. I wasn’t aware that this gentleman had bought the property on Stewart until this...

Mr. Raab: (interrupting) He did not buy the property. That gentleman did not buy the property on Stewart.

Ms. Palmer: Well, you have …

Mr. Raab: (interrupting) I represented the person on Stewart, who bought the property on Stewart.

Ms. Palmer: O.K. but this is exactly what I’m afraid of. Ken (Ryan) brought up multi-family. I’m afraid of having these two properties joined and having a multi-family put up right in front of my house. And, it doesn’t take a lot for this to happen. You get one variance cleared and then all of a sudden what’s in front of you changes and that’s my fear. We have not seen any of this stuff. You’ve seen it because it comes to the Zoning. We’ve never been informed about anything other than this notice. So, the neighbors really have no idea of what’s going on in front of us other than what’s being presented to the Board. So, we’re afraid that we’re going to have a multi-family up in front of us. It’s one of the biggest fears that we have. We have cars going by, you know since this property sold we have people who are on our property all the time, all the time and we have no control over it. I’ve had surveyors on my property. I don’t even know who they are. And, because we’re directly in front of this property we really have nothing to say about it. Since it’s been up on the market we have people every day early in the morning, late at night, we don’t even know who is on our property anymore and now we are going to deal with developers, people who are going to be destroying trees, coming early in the morning and we have no control over it. So, we are completely opposed to this, especially since we are in front of this and going to have to deal with this for the next year until they can figure out what they are going to do with it. I don’t know how long it’s going to take for them to get a house up or whatever but it will directly impact me. And, I would suggest if you’re going to do it, if it goes forward I would appreciate it that driveway at least got moved to a safer place cause I know it will impact Fran (Molter, 17 Bellevue Rd), she is an elderly woman, she will not be able to get out. She can’t get out now.

Mr. Raab: (interrupting, addressing Ms. Palmer) How is that going to impact you getting out of your driveway?

Ms. Palmer: She and I, our driveways are literally together…

Mr. Raab: Yeah, I know, I can see it.

Ms. Palmer: And, hers …

Mr. Raab: (interrupting and cross talking) but I don’t understand how that…

Ms. Palmer: hers…slope… (inaudible)

Mr. Raab: use the property across the street to back up in…

Ms. Palmer: …when you back out, if you know (inaudible) it’s very difficult, there is no guardrail that stops us from going down and when it’s slippery it’s very dangerous and because we don’t have the proper salting on our street in the winter it’s very dangerous. Anybody who lives on our street knows it. So, when you put another driveway right there you are going to have a problem and you should take that into consideration when you do that, you’re going to be building where two other driveways meet. So, somebody is going to have a problem getting out.

Mr. Raab: Are you requesting the driveway be moved? 

Ms. Palmer: I am asking for it to be taken into consideration. We live there now, so you should take into consideration the current residents and since you haven’t built yet you can change the configuration. 

Mr. Manley: Madam Chair.

Chairperson Cardone: I’d like to make one statement. They are requesting a single-family home. They could not change that if they got a variance, they could not change that to a multi-family home.

Ms. Palmer: (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you speak into the mic, please? I’m sorry.

Chairperson Cardone: If anyone would want to do that they would have to come before the Board and there would be a Public Hearing and you would be notified.

Mr. Raab: And it’s a much larger area variance to request. I would be surprised if it were granted an area variance (inaudible).

Mr. Manley: Madam Chair, I just had a question for Ms. Palmer.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Manley: And, that would be your existing home, what year was your home built?

(inaudible)

Mr. Manley: 1952?

(inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you just please talk into the mic? It goes into the system. Thank you.

Ms. Palmer: (inaudible)

Mr. Manley: The early 50’s or something like that?

Ms. Palmer: I am not sure.

Mr. Manley: Plus or minus a couple of years? How long have you been at that residence?

Ms. Palmer: It will be two years in September.

Mr. Manley: O.K. And you’re aware currently, that currently has 26 ft frontage between the house and the street, and your property line?

Ms. Palmer: I have no idea what the frontage is.

Mr. Manley: O.K. I was just looking at the map here. I’m just trying to get an idea of most of what the differences are between the other neighboring homes.

Ms. Palmer: I really don’t know. I assume whatever the setbacks are that’s what they were when they were built.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Ms. Palmer: I don’t know what the normal setbacks are and if there were variances needed back then. 

Mr. Manley: O.K. But its been 1951, 52 when the home was built, right?

Ms. Palmer: I don’t know for sure, it’s an older home. (inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Well that’s prior to this Code.

Ms. Ryan: I live at 15 Bellevue Road; my name is Annie Ryan our house was built in 1935.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Ms. Ryan: So, it’s possible that these houses that are lined up could have very well been built at the very same time perhaps the variances were different then. The houses are close together it wasn’t our choice. But since we are able to be here to speak about this new development we’d like our opinions to be heard and I don’t now if you’re representing … you said you represented the seller from the other home…the house on Stewart?

Mr. Raab: Yes, I do.

Ms. Ryan: There were a lot of savable trees on that property. I mean, I’ve seen a lot of people come through; we just don’t take down a tree just because it was falling on the road and they literally ripped that property apart. We now have mountain views, O.K. we’ve never, I mean it was a very nice area, the trees were there and when this company came in they took everything out, everything. You can see the mountains over in West Point, which we never saw before. The other thing is we, you the road is very narrow, we have a lot of parking problems as it is. They have to take this into consideration that definitely is a driveway and the cars cannot be on the road. We don’t have a lot of snowplows coming through. It’s a tough road. I’ve been there for six years.

Chairperson Cardone: We’ve all been there.

Ms. Ryan: O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: We also don’t want cars parked on the road. Jimmy (Raab) knows because we’ve gone through this before and he’s got a bigger driveway here than he does on many of the others.

Mr. Raab: We want to make sure there is as little parking on the road as possible. O.K. We’re not saying that we will but O.K. but a party is a party is a party so but the fact of the matter is that we put a driveway in here long enough for the residents so the residents do not have to park on the road.

Mr. Manley: Mr. Raab, with that being said, is it safe to say that that driveway appears to be 75 ft maybe?

Mr. Raab: I would say you’re absolutely right, Mr. Manley.

Mr. Manley: 70? O.K.

Mr. Raab: Yes. 

Mr. Manley: And that doesn’t include the right turn when it makes the right turn towards the house there?

Mr. Raab: No, that would be from…where you’re gauging it from would be from the right away line in the road to the end of the driveway that would be about 75 ft. Plus it’s a two car garage plus the cars could be parked into the garage area and still get probably possibly one car past the back of the cars. There’s probably room for six cars, which is about the average.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other comments from the public? Yes?

Ms. Fayo: Michelle Fayo, 4 Boulder Road, my question is Zoning. Is there zoning to prevent him from putting an apartment downstairs?

Chairperson Cardone: Oh, yes.

Ms. Fayo: There is?

Mr. Raab: Absolutely.

Ms. Fayo: So, there is no way that someone could live down there?

Mr. McKelvey: They would have to come before the Board, come back in front of us.

Mr. Raab: They would have to come back before this Board again. 

Ms. Fayo: O.K. And, the other thing is, are you going to be bringing in trucks with fill?

Mr. Raab: Again, it depends on how they want to grade it.

Ms. Fayo: This is all after the fact you know what I mean.

Mr. Raab: I would say yes there is probably going to be some fill but not an awful lot.

Ms. Fayo: So you don’t know what way they will be coming up? Because no one can get through down here so they are going to be coming up by me…straight up Putnam down Boulder…

Mr. Raab: So you’re talking about the trucks coming into...

Ms. Fayo: Yes.

Mr. Raab: Oh, I would say that the truck traffic would probably be a minimum. O.K. If I was going to guess I would say a minimum 6, 8 trucks minimum (inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Yes?

Ms. Palmer: Tammi Palmer. I just had a question; do we know when the lots were joined because I thought these were two separate lots?  

Mr. Raab: Well actually no, there were four separate lots. O.K.? 

Ms. Palmer: So, have they been joined? 

Mr. Raab: They were all joined I’m going to guess about 10 years ago.

Ms. Palmer: They were for sale up separately so I don’t know when they were joined? Because they were for sale up until four months ago, separately.

Mr. Raab: You mean, no there was three separate lots, there was three separate lots. O.K.?

Ms. Palmer: But they were being sold separately, individually.

Mr. Raab: Right.

Ms. Palmer: Three months ago, four months ago before they were sold.

Mr. Raab: It was longer than that. It was about six months ago.

Ms. Palmer: In January?

Mr. Raab: Yes.

Ms. Palmer: Since they were being sold separately, my question still is, when were they joined?

Mr. Raab: I’m not quite sure, what, they are not joined.

Ms. Palmer: So, how are you able to do what you’re doing if they are not joined?

Mr. Raab: Well, I’m confused with the question to be perfectly honest with you.

Ms. Palmer: I don’t think it’s a confusing question…(inaudible) one lot?

Mr. Raab: (interrupting) What lots are you talking about? Are you talking about the lot … this is one tax parcel. O.K.?

Ms. Palmer: O.K. you’re able to, so where are all your other…you’re building on one lot, or four lots?  

Mr. Raab: There was four individual sub-division lots from the original sub-division. We’re building on all four of them.

Ms. Palmer: O.K. So, are the lots joined?

Mr. Raab: Yes, they are all joined as one tax lot, yes.

Ms. Palmer: O.K., so…

Chairperson Cardone: Her question is when did that happen?

Ms. Palmer: When did they get joined?

Mr. Raab: I would have to assume that they were joined when the land was purchased last, before Mr. Doce. If I can guess, I think that was right in the ‘80’s, ’88, ’89 something like that. They were individual sub-division lots and they were consolidated together. They took four at a block. That’s all I, I can only assume that right now.

Chairperson Cardone: What she is saying is that, she feels that that those four lots that were joined together were being, were up for sale individually.

Mr. Raab: No.

Chairperson Cardone: A few months ago.

Mr. Raab: They were not.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s what she’s saying.

Mr. Raab: That wasn’t the case six months ago. This tax parcels like this existed for almost 20 years.

Mr. McKelvey: But if there were four individual lots they would have been too small to build anything on.

Mr. Raab: That’s correct.

Chairperson Cardone: Do you understand? (to Ms. Palmer)

Ms. Palmer: I do understand. Would we have been notified if there was another Hearing prior to this? We would have been, right?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Ms. Palmer: O.K.

Mr. Ryan: I was just wondering…

Chairperson Cardone: Could you just state your name again please?

Mr. Ryan: Oh, I’m sorry. Ken Ryan again from 15 Bellevue Road. Is the owner building this house for himself or is he building this for sale as an investment?

Mr. Raab: It was purchased as an investment and there is a chance and I say it’s a 50/50 chance that his brother will build on it if he can’t find anything, if he can’t find anything that’s around the same price. He does want to build this year, so there is a chance that Jason Doce who is Darren Doce’s brother may build on this property but that’s not an absolute.

Mr. McKelvey: That was my first question; I asked if it was a spec house. And, he gave the same answer.

Mr. Ryan: Oh, I’m sorry, I didn’t hear you pose the question.

Mr. Raab: That’s O.K. 

Mr. Ryan: The vents and stuff start going on it’s hard to hear. So, then his brother may be the occupier of the home also you say?

Mr. Raab: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any other questions or comments? If not, I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

                                                                                  Ruth Eaton: Absent

Mr. Raab: Thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.








(Time Noted – 7:35 PM)

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007         (Resumption for decision:  9:33 PM)

DARREN DOCE



BELLEVUE ROAD, NBGH







(99-2-32.1) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area and front yard setback to build a new single-family residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Darren Doce on Bellevue Road seeking an area variance for the lot area and front yard setback to build a new single family residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. 

Mr. Manley: Looking at the plans and going out to the site visit the proximity of that particular home that’s being proposed is certainly within character of the rest of the neighbors, in fact the one neighbor is 26 feet and this one is 32 so I mean the builder and the person submitting the plans appears to have done a lot of work to take that into consideration in this particular parcel.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application? 

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll move for approval.

Mr. Manley: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                     John McKelvey: Yes

                                     Brenda Drake: Yes

                                     Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                     Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                     James Manley: Yes

                                     Grace Cardone: Yes

                                                                            Ruth Eaton: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.








(Time Noted – 9:33 PM)

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007             (Time Noted – 7:35 PM) 

HUMBERTO PEREZ



18 TAFT AVENUE, NBGH







(72-9-36) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a rear addition on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Humberto Perez, 18 Taft Avenue.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Mr. Kasses: Good evening, ladies and gentlemen, Mark Kasses on behalf of Humberto Perez at 18 Taft Avenue. The reason we are here this evening is to seek a (3) three foot setback for the erection of a three season room. Currently we have 43 feet in a zone requires 40 feet, so we need to take an additional three feet from the setback, which means our setback when construction is completed would be 37 feet. 

Mr. McKelvey: Does he own the property beyond that fence?

Mr. Kasses: Yes, yes, sir.

Mr. McKelvey: You’d solve the problem by joining them.

Mr. Kasses: Well, we’re going to, as I understand his daughter is going to be seeking variances to try to build on it for her own home.

Chairperson Cardone: Could you describe what this addition will be used for?

Mr. Kasses: It’s a three-season room, maam, for the family congregating outside (inaudible). 

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. What did you say your name was?

Mr. Kasses: Mark Kasses.

Ms. Gennarelli: And, is Mr. Perez here tonight?

Mr. Kasses: Yes.

Mr. Gennarelli: I don’t have a proxy, so I just need to know that you’re allowed to speak for him.

Mr. Kasses: Humberto.

Mr. Perez: My name is Humberto Perez and he is going to represent me tonight.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: We didn’t have an authorization form.

Mr. Kasses: Oh, O.K.

Mr. Hughes: That’s the reason we are asking.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: I agree with Mr. McKelvey’s comment. You own the property behind, right?

Mr. Kasses: Yes, correct. 

Ms. Drake: Is that lot that parcel behind there sufficient to build a house on?

Mr. Kasses: Not on its current, not without any variances, no, although it was subdivided for that intention to build at a later date for his daughter.

Ms. Drake: How long ago was it sub-divided?

Mr. Perez: (inaudible)

Mr. Kasses: Oh, I stand corrected. He bought it like that. 

Ms. Drake: How long ago did he purchase it?

Mr. Perez: ’87.

Mr. Kasses: 1987.

Mr. Donovan: Just so I’m clear that the house parcel which was subject to the variance, when was that parcel acquired? 

Mr. Kasses: 1987, sir.

Mr. Donovan: I’m sorry, I thought the question was, did the…the parcel in the rear, when was that acquired.

Mr. Kasses: They were both purchased together, sir, in 1987.

Mr. Donovan: Oh, I’m sorry, I thought you said…did I get that wrong? 

Chairperson Cardone: No, you didn’t. She asked when the other one was purchased. He’s saying they were both purchased at the same time.

Mr. Kasses: Yes, correct.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: I have a question for counsel, if I may?

Mr. Donovan: Fire away.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. This is so that you know too, for all of our information, here; we don’t want to walk into something where you’re going to have to come back in here again and about to paint yourself in a corner. If Mr. Perez has in mind to eventually build another dwelling on that property it would be my recommendation that you join that property together into one parcel now and go for an accessory apartment at that time. He would have to live in the building to make it legitimate to have an accessory apartment but to segment or to compound or piggy back if you will several movements here…

Chairperson Cardone: That would really limit the size of what he could build though.

Mr. Hughes: Well it’s going to be limited anyway because the land he owns is the land he owns.

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t think he would be limited by as much though.

Mr. Hughes: Well if he is adding on to the main dwelling that’s going to increase his floor square footage that he can add on for an accessory and its just my opinion that that’s the smoothest way to make this transition. Maybe our attorney can show me another (inaudible) how to do it? It’s a question more than a statement.

Mr. Donovan: I thought it was a statement more than a question.

Mr. Hughes: Well it sounded like one but…do you see where I’m going with this because we have two lots together, it’s under the same ownership. If you erase the line in the middle and you have one big lot then you are all through it. Now we’re doing segmentation.

Mr. Donovan: Well certainly relevant to this application that makes it easier.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: I don’t know that we should put ourselves in a position to tell the applicant which application to make though. We can rule on what’s ahead of us.

Mr. Hughes: Well we can outline options.

Mr. McKelvey: I just made a suggestion that he could do that. I didn’t say he had to do it.

Chairperson Cardone: You didn’t make the suggestion about the accessory apartment.

Mr. McKelvey: Oh, no.

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. Hughes: Do you see where we’re heading here?

Mr. Kasses: Right, but he just wants to request a three-foot variance for the porch. 

Mr. Hughes: And, then come what may. It may be more difficult later to put another dwelling.

Mr. Kasses: That may be some time down the road.

Mr. Hughes: As long as you understand your options.

Mr. McKelvey: Because I am looking at that back lot and the width of it is very narrow compared to your front lot. You know your only 100 ft on one side and 92 ft deep on the other. It’s going to be an awful variance to build on that lot.

Mr. Hughes: Unless the unit you are making now on the main house is bigger and you don’t have to worry about that later.

Mr. Kasses: We doing a three-season rear porch.

Chairperson Cardone: They are doing a sunroom.

Mr. Kasses: That’s all we’re doing, there is one existing, we only enlarging it by 4 or 5 feet.

Mr. Hughes: We’ve all been out to the site.    

Mr. Kasses: Oh, O.K.

Mr. Hughes: So, we know what’s there. We go to every site.

Chairperson Cardone: And, 4 feet is exactly what you need according to this. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering those questions.

Mr. Kasses: Thank you, Mr. Hughes.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? I’d like to read into the record the report from the Orange County Department of Planning

The Planning Department has reviewed the submitted materials regarding the appeal for an area variance. While the Zoning Board of Appeals must weigh the local issues in balancing the needs of the applicant with the potential impacts of the surrounding area, it does not appear that inter-municipal or countywide impacts would result if the board finds that granting relief is warranted in this matter. County Recommendation:  Local Determination. 

Chairperson Cardone: If there are no other comments I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

                                                                                  Ruth Eaton: Absent

Mr. Kasses: Thank you very much. Have a great evening, ladies and gentlemen.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.







(Time Noted – 7:42 PM)

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007        (Resumption for decision: 9:34PM)

HUMBERTO PEREZ



18 TAFT AVENUE, NBGH







(72-9-36) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a rear addition on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Humberto Perez at 18 Taft Avenue seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a rear addition on the home.

This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do I have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I think the applicant should combine the two lots being the second lot is there it would actually be needing variances also. Should they combine the two lots they wouldn’t need a variance at all.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other discussion on this application? Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for disapproval on this application?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion for disapproval of the application.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

                                                                           Ruth Eaton: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for disapproval is carried.

(Time Noted – 9:35 PM)

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007                 (Time Noted – 7:42 PM) 

RAN RUBINSTEIN-200 STONY

200 STONY BROOK COURT, NBGH

    BROOK ASSOCIATES, LLC.

(97-1-49) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build an addition to an existing building and conversion of building to full office use.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant this evening is Ran Rubinstein, 200 Stony Brook Associates, LLC, 200 Stony Brook Court.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Mr. Pendergast: Good evening, my name is Bill Pendergast I am with Pendergast & Terach here representing Dr. Rubinstein. We are asking tonight for a variance for a (2 ½) two and one half inch difference in the survey that we received to the setback to the existing facade of the building on 200 Stony Brook Court. The Doctor is proposing, has been to the Planning Board, to add an addition that will not encroach any further on the setback of the front yard that currently exists. The current setback is 39 feet, 39.8 feet and it needs to be 40 feet and that’s to the existing building that has existed since the building was built. 

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Do you have authorization?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: I don’t have it in my package.

Chairperson Cardone: It’s in there. 

Mr. McKelvey: Is this going to be an office building?

Mr. Pendergast: Correct. It was formerly the Ellenville Bank. It will be an office building for the Doctor.

Mr. Hughes: You said 2 ½ inches?

Mr. Pendergast: 2 ½ inches.

Mr. Hughes: I thought I misheard you.

Mr. Donovan: My question is why it just didn’t list it as 40 feet, plus or minus.

Mr. Pendergast: The surveyor who prepared the survey sent it to the Planning Board and we didn’t see it, they saw it. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Pendergast: We asked him the same question. That’s what happens when the surveyor comes from Connecticut. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? If not I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to close the Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes





                        Ruth Eaton: Absent

Mr. Pendergast: Thank you very much.








(Time Noted – 7:46 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007          (Resumption for decision: 9:35 PM)

RAN RUBINSTEIN-200 STONY

200 STONY BROOK COURT, NBGH

    BROOK ASSOCIATES, LLC.

(97-1-49) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build an addition to an existing building and conversion of building to full office use.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Ran Rubinstein, 200 Stony Brook Associates at 200 Stony Brook Court seeking an area variance for a front yard setback to build an addition to an existing building and conversion of building to full office use. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. And, I’d like to read into the record the report from the County.

The Planning Department has reviewed the submitted materials regarding the appeal for an area variance. While the Zoning Board of Appeals must weigh the local issues in balancing the needs of the appellant with the potential impacts of the surrounding area, it does not appear that inter-municipal or countywide impacts would result if the board finds that granting relief is warranted in this matter and that’s Local Determination. 

Any discussion on this application? 

Mr. Manley: I think the request is not very excessive.

Chairperson Cardone: I would agree.

Mr. Manley: Two inches is not a lot.

Ms. Drake: (inaudible)

Mr. Manley: I’ll make a motion that we approve.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

                                                                                  Ruth Eaton: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.








(Time Noted – 9:37 PM)

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007                    (Time Noted – 7:47 PM) 

SHAWN & GENEEN SEAL


117 NORTH DIX AVENUE, NBGH





(73-6-21, 19 & 20) R-3  (Lots combined into one - 21.2)

Applicant is seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front and rear yard setbacks and for the maximum building coverage to build an addition with two decks on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicants Shawn and Geneen Seal, 117 North Dix Avenue.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Mr. Seal: How are you doing? My name is Shawn Seal, 117 North Dix Avenue; we’re requesting a front setback variance of (0.7) point seven feet and a rear setback of  (2.2) two point two feet and a building coverage variance of (2.31%) two point three one percent for an addition. The existing house is only 800 sq. ft. and we’d like to add on.

Ms. Drake: How many bedrooms are you adding to the house?

Mr. Seal: We are adding one bedroom and a new living room it’s approximately 800 sq ft and the addition for a total of about 1600.

Mr. McKelvey: Does this have water and sewer?

Mr. Seal: We are taking out our septic tank and tying into the sewer.

Mr. McKelvey: I didn’t hear what you said.

Chairperson Cardone: He is tying into the sewer.

Mr. Seal: We’re going to tie into the sewer.

Mr. McKelvey: Oh, and you have Town water?

Mr. Seal: We have Town water already. We have the permits for the sewer already. 

Mr. Hughes: Is your lot 100 x 100 or 100 x 40?

Mr. Seal: 100 x 100.

Mr. Hughes: Because I have two maps here.

Mr. Seal: We just recently joined them. We had (3) three lots at one time.

Mr. Hughes: O.K., and where are you planning on parking your cars? I didn’t see any indication on any of these diagrams about off street parking.

Mr. Seal: It’ll be parking in front of the addition where we park now. It’s just a gravel driveway.

Mr. Hughes: I would feel more comfortable if that was depicted.

Mr. McKelvey: There is a car parked right here. 

Mr. Hughes: I know where it is but there is nothing on the print. The problem is, we get these people they put additions on small lots and then they have three bedrooms, mommy and daddy have a car so do both the kids now you have (4) four cars on 100 x 100  (inaudible) it hurts and then they park them out on the street and you can’t plow and you can’t maintain.

Mr. Seal: It’s just the two of us right now and we got one on the way.

Mr. Hughes: They are sneaking up on us already. 

Mr. Seals: It’ll be a while before he is driving.

Mr. Hughes: I hope to see it. Thank you for answering those questions.

Chairperson Cardone: In other words, 19, 20 and 21 were joined.

Mr. Seals: Yes, they were.

Ms. Drake: There’s a shed in the back, is that shed there in the back of your lot?

Mr. Seals: Yes there is.

Ms. Drake: Is that included in the calculations for the building coverage?

Mr. Seals: I don’t know the Town said they knew the shed was there, so.

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Mattina, do you have an answer to that?

Mr. Mattina: I don’t remember if I calculated it or not, but I am going to say no.

Mr. Hughes: I don’t see it reflected on here.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, can you use the mic please? I’m sorry Joe.

Mr. Mattina: Joe Mattina, Code Compliance, I am going to say no because the map I had doesn’t even show a shed.

Mr. Donovan: It’s not here.

Mr. Mattina: So, I have no reason to believe there is even one there.

Mr. Hughes: It might pay you to double check that and include those calculations in your percentages and coverages and all…

Mr. Seal: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: …so there is no mistake because what we approved today you have to live with and if that’s not in the formula you’re out of luck.

Chairperson Cardone: Were you considering taking the shed down or were you planning to keep it?

Mr. Seal: I just built it last year. I was going to keep it.

Chairperson Cardone: I guess your not planning to take it down?

Mr. Seal: No. It’s only 12’ x 12’, it’s not a real big shed.

Mr. McKelvey: A Building Permit?

Mr. Seal: Yes, of course.

Ms. Drake: Well, not necessarily. Being the addition is fairly large compared to the existing building and so forth and the variances that you are asking for are .7 and 2.2 feet, is there anyway you could just reduce the size of the house a little bit, the addition and not even need the variance? Have you considered that? Looks like maybe by the reaction.

Ms. Seal: Geneen Seal, 117 North Dix, we would loose our closets and we have no closets in our house right now so that’s why we didn’t want to cut it back.

Mr. Manley: How many bedrooms are in the house presently, prior to the addition?

Mr. Seal: There is one real bedroom and one more like a large walk in closet than a bedroom and that’s it and there is no closets at all.

Mr. Manley: One bath presently?

Mr. Seal: One bath, one small bath. It’s a very small house.

Ms. Drake: When did you purchase the house?

Mr. Seal: Three years ago, September, August, sorry.

Ms. Drake: You said that was three years ago?

Mr. Seal: Three years ago, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? 

Mr. Manley: Have the lot lines been removed and combined into one lot or are they still separate parcels?

Ms. Seal: I applied for it a month ago through the Town Clerk’s office I think it was. I filled out all the paperwork.

Mr. Manley: At the County?

Ms. Seals: No in this building.

Mr. Hughes: The Assessor’s Office?

Mr. Donovan: I’m sure you were at the Assessor’s Office.

Ms. Seal: The Assessor’s Office, I’m sorry.

Mr. Seal: That’s the one.

Ms. Seal: Yes, I did it last month.

Mr. McKelvey: It says here you are going to remove the front porch. 

Mr. Seal: Yes, the existing front porch and we’re going to move the front door to the new living room and put a small, minimum required porch there in front.

Mr. Manley: You wouldn’t have happened to get a sketch of what the house would look like completed, do you happen to have one?

Mr. Seal: I have the plans out in the car.

Ms. Gennarelli: I have a copy.

Mr. Manley: It looks like we have one here.

Mr. McKelvey: Jerry, they are going to take the front porch off there.

Mr. Mattina: Building a new front porch?

Mr. Seal: Yes, very small one, I think it’s whatever the minimum required is.

Mr. McKelvey: It’ll be smaller than the one that is there now?

Mr. Seal: Oh yes, definitely.
Mr. McKelvey: That’s why we are going to need plans.

Ms. Gennarelli: We have plans here.

Mr. Manley: Right here.

Mr. Seal: They have them.

Mr. McKelvey: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: I have the report from the County, from the Orange County Department of Planning and I’ll read that into the record.

This department has received the photos, the site plan and the short environmental assessment form for the proposed addition to the existing residence. This addition will put portions of the house closer to the rear yard property lines within the required setback areas and will increase the portion of the lot covered by the building to 17.3% of the lot area. The lot is located at the corner of Woodland Avenue and North Dix Avenue giving the lot two front yards and two rear yards. Based on this review we have the following comments. In determining whether to grant the requested area variance consideration should be given to the added benefit afforded the applicant if the variance is granted versus the potential detriment to the health, safety and welfare of the community or neighborhood by such an approval. When deliberating whether to grant the requested variance consideration should be given to 1) whether the proposed area variance if granted will produce an undesirable change in the community or surrounding neighborhood 2) whether the relief sought can be achieved by some other means other than the variance requested 3) whether the requested variance is substantial 4) whether the variance if granted will have an adverse effect on physical or environmental conditions of the neighborhood or district and 5) whether the alleged difficulty was self-created. Conditions and restrictions related to or incidental to the proposed use of the property may be imposed with the approval of an area variance to minimize any adverse impacts to the surrounding neighborhood and community. In this case, the proposed action of an addition to the house which increases the building lot coverage to a degree that is greater than allowable under current zoning restrictions and will not have any impact on State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns. County Recommendation: Local Determination.  

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you just check and see if that mic is on? Thank you.

Mr. Mattina: Yes. Joe Mattina, Code Compliance again, with the 144 sq ft shed added in it comes out to 20%, comes out to 2000 sq ft of building coverage on a 10000 sq ft lot so its…

Mr. Hughes: So, it’s 5% over?

Mr. Donovan: Yes.

Mr. Mattina: Yes, he was asking for 17.31 and needs to technically ask for 20. Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Mr. Manley: On the plans, I am just noticing here a second bedroom but it also says existing living room. Is the existing living room becoming another bedroom?

Mr. Seal: Yes. It is.

Mr. Manley: So, it will be a three-bedroom home when it’s complete.

Mr. Seal: Yes. Three bedrooms, two bath.

Mr. Manley: Thank you.

Mr. McKelvey: If you build a smaller porch that’s going to cut a few square feet off, right?

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: So we really truly don’t know what he’s got, the actual figure?

Mr. Donovan: Well, depending upon what the Board decides to do, if he were slightly over that would not present a problem, being slightly under would present a problem.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: And, he’s testified that he is going to build a smaller front porch so…

Mr. Seal: Yes, whatever the minimum required is for a front porch landing that you have to have for a set of stairs going in. That’s what it’s going to be.

Mr. Hughes: Which way do the stairs go up?

Mr. Seal: Straight up and into the door.

Mr. Hughes: Through the front yard.

Mr. Seal: Right.

(inaudible)

Mr. Seal: 6 x 8 rings a bell, I think.

Ms. Drake: He’s got 4 x 7 showing on the plans. 

Mr. Seal: That’s what it is.

Mr. Mattina: Joe from Code Compliance again. The original application shows two 4 x 7 decks, on the front and back but it also shows a covered front porch which is being built. Is that what he is talking about? 

Mr. Hughes: Is that the porch that is being removed?

Mr. Mattina: That is 8 x 16.

Mr. Hughes: Is that what that is?

Mr. Seal: Yes that is coming off. That’s it.

Mr. Mattina: O.K. do the plans show a new one being built? 

Mr. Hughes: Being removed.

Ms. Drake: Showing a 4 x 7 deck.

Mr. Seal: Yes.

Mr. Mattina: What about the existing?

Mr. Seal: The 4x7 deck is going to be built on the front of the new front door and the existing front covered porch is going to be removed.

Mr. Mattina: It’s going to be removed completely.

Mr. Seal: Yes, removed completely.

Mr. Mattina: Yes, so that saves him 96 sq ft there.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments? If there are no other questions or comments I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

                                                                                  Ruth Eaton: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:02 PM) 

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007          (Resumption for decision: 9:37 PM)

SHAWN & GENEEN SEAL


117 NORTH DIX AVENUE, NBGH





(73-6-21, 19 & 20) R-3 ( lots combined into one - 21.2)

Applicant is seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front and rear yard setbacks and for the maximum building coverage to build an addition with two decks on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Shawn and Geneen Seal at 117 North Dix Avenue seeking area variances increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front and rear yard setbacks and for the maximum building coverage to build an addition with two decks on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I think we wrung that one out pretty well about all of the needs and necessities on 100 x 100 lot. I think that I’d feel better if it was conditioned with the off street parking that was discussed. 

Mr. McKelvey: I’d have to agree with you.

Mr. Hughes: That’s a tight neighborhood in there. All of the streets surrounding there, I think it was a 1928 or 48 sub-division. They were all 30-foot lots; they have several of them joined together. I’m really concerned about the safety issue for snow plowing and fire equipment so I would like to include that condition for off street parking and that they further their plans and show where that is going to be. Other than that I have no problem with it. I’ll make a motion to approve.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second that.

Mr. Donovan: Now just so I’m clear. In terms of the off street parking what’s the requirement that you… 

Mr. Hughes: Where the new driveway is going to be located and where the cars will be placed.

Chairperson Cardone: For two vehicles.

Mr. Hughes: They’re talking three bedrooms.

Chairperson Cardone: For two vehicles.

Mr. Donovan: So we’re going to show the new driveway location with sufficient off street parking to accommodate two vehicles.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. 

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

                                                                                  Ruth Eaton: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

(Time Noted – 9:39 PM) 

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007         (Time Noted – 8:02 PM) 


DAVID FEENEY 



20 ALTA DRIVE, NBGH 










(9-3-78) R-3 ZONE 

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front and side yard setbacks to erect a front porch on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant this evening is David Feeney, 20 Alta Drive.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Mr. Feeney: David Feeney, 20 Alta Drive, I am requesting a front and side yard setback variance for the purpose of extending an existing front porch. Currently there is approximately 34 feet in the front yard setback and 27 or so on the side yard and that existing front setback would remain the same, the front porch would increase to the left hand side of the house across the front and being that the lot line runs at an angle to the house it would encroach approximately three more feet for the side yard setback. 

Mr. McKelvey: How old is the house?

Mr. Feeney: It was built in approximately 1998.

Chairperson Cardone: And at that time you received a variance.

Mr. Feeney: The house was a spec house that was built that I purchased. I assume if a variance was needed because it didn’t meet the setbacks at that time it was obtained for the purpose of the C.O. There have been no changes since I purchased the house to the front in terms of that existing front porch. 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, Mr. Canfield?

Mr. Canfield: At the time of the construction of the house, Jerry Canfield Code Compliance, the requirement was 40 feet which it did receive a variance, the builder at time did and the requirement is now 50 feet it was changed. But at the time of construction it was 40 feet. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board?

Ms. Drake: I know because I talked to him when I was out there but just for the record would you state what the other construction is, that is going on on-site right now?

Mr. Feeney: O.K. to the right-hand side of the house and set back part way, I am adding a two-car garage with a bonus room above it.

Ms. Drake: And that doesn’t need any variances so that was a separate Permit?

Mr. Feeney: That was a separate Permit and was already been issued, yes.

Mr. Hughes: How big is that?

Mr. Feeney: How big is that other addition? 28 x 28.

Mr. Hughes: And, with the bonus room and all that, what’s the reason for the big front porch? Can you slide that front porch to the right to accommodate your needs without a variance? 

Mr. Feeney: Again, for off of the front yard standpoint, no. The encroachment for the front would remain the same.

Mr. Hughes: Well I’m talking about sliding it to the right?

Mr. Feeney: To the side we looked at different elevations and just esthetically because of the slope of the land, it’s more esthetically pleasing to be to the left-hand side.

Ms. Drake: And, I don’t think even if they moved it all the way to the other end of the house, they would still need a variance for anything on that front based on that site.

Mr. Hughes: You’re showing 23 feet here to the corner.

Ms. Drake: Right, but if he needs 50, he’d have to apply…

Mr. Hughes: But for the side yard he only needs 30 on one side. 

Ms. Drake: Oh.

Mr. Hughes: The front is the other way.

Ms. Drake: Oh.

Mr. Hughes: And, you have 1.3 acres here, it’s not like you didn’t have enough land. Why did they put that thing all the way up there?

Mr. Feeney: Again, the house was built when I purchased it as built. Now you can see that back, it’s offset on the lot.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, we’ve been out there. Why did they jam everything in one corner? Thank you for answering those questions.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions? Any comments or questions from the public? If not, I would entertain …

Mr. Hughes: That bonus room heated and all, plumbing and electric, you got that in this new addition?

Mr. Feeney: Yes.

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

                                                                                  Ruth Eaton: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:07 PM)

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007        (Resumption for decision: 9:40 PM)

DAVID FEENEY 



20 ALTA DRIVE, NBGH 










(9-3-78) R-3 ZONE 

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front and side yard setbacks to erect a front porch on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of David Feeney at 20 Alta Drive seeking an area variances for the front and side yard setbacks to erect a front porch on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: There was a series of things that went here when this house was built that the regulations were different really doesn’t put it in a better light as far as I’m concerned. But it’s not obtrusive or offensive either on the end of that cul-de-sac. It’s just I’m always disappointed when I see a 1.3 acre chunk of land and everything is up against the road. That’s just poor planning.

Mr. Manley: It’s very possible, do you think maybe it’s possible that perhaps the previous owner thought to do something with the back part of the property? That’s possible too. 

Mr. Hughes: Well, you never know, none the less, when you have that much land it’s a shame that it goes to waste and you infringe on others being up in the front yard like that.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

Mr. Manley: I’ll make a motion to approve.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes





                                Ruth Eaton: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.               

(Time Noted – 9:40 PM)

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007                  (Time Noted – 8:07 PM) 

CHARLES SHELDON


34 WINONA AVENUE, NBGH







(70-1-37) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front and side yard setbacks to erect a front deck on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant this evening is Charles Sheldon, 34 Winona Avenue.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Mr. Sheldon: Hello, Charles Sheldon, 34 Winona Avenue, applying for a front yard and side setbacks to add a front porch. I want to rip out the existing front steps and add a porch and steps.

Ms. Drake: The new proposed steps they will be coming down to the side driveway and therefore you won’t have any entrance to the front road there?

Mr. Sheldon: I am not sure I understand the question.

Ms. Drake: Will you be removing these steps here? Will these steps moved and then you’re going to …

Mr. Sheldon: Right there.

Ms. Drake: Right here so this will be coming down to this driveway here and there won’t be any steps going down to here at all then? 

Mr. Sheldon: No, I am going to use the existing walkway that’s there, steps (inaudible)

Ms. Drake: Down here and then circle around to the walkway here?

Mr. Sheldon: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

                                                                                  Ruth Eaton: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.       

                                                                                  (Time Noted – 8:09 PM) 

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007      (Resumption for decision: 9:40 PM)

CHARLES SHELDON


34 WINONA AVENUE, NBGH







(70-1-37) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front and side yard setbacks to erect a front deck on residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Charles Sheldon at 34 Winona Avenue, seeking area an variance for the front and side yard setbacks to build a front deck on residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: I think in that neighborhood there’s a lot of porches like that on those houses.

Ms. Drake: I agree, you need a landing coming out that door instead of straight down the steps, that would actually increase the safety of the house, entering and exiting the house.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we approve.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

                                                                                  Ruth Eaton: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

                                                                        (Time Noted – 9:42 PM) 

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007                (Time Noted – 8:09 PM) 

POLHAMUS & CARSTROM

65 BALMVILLE ROAD, NBGH







(43-3-34.2) R-1 ZONE 

Applicant is seeking area variances increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback, the maximum allowable surface coverage to build a rear addition to residence, to allow a tennis court in a front yard, tennis courts shall be screened from view and to allow a pool in a front yard.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Polhamus & Carstrom, 65 Balmville Road.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Mr. Coppola: So, my name is AJ Coppola I am the architect who has prepared the plans. This is actually our third appearance in front of the Zoning Board and I’ll just go back in time and explain what we had originally proposed and how we’ve revised our application and what we are proposing as part of this variance request. When we first submitted this in the spring basically we submitted this for a 1-story rear yard addition to expand two existing bedrooms approximately 12 ft out from the house and 40 feet wide that went out to the rear. That part of the request is the same tonight as it was in April. The original request basically was just considering the front lot here the one that was on, the one that is on Balmville Road 43-3-34 and then basically as the Board probably remembers there were a whole bunch of questions about the rear lot which is in the same name and the tennis court and the pool which are on that rear lot. So basically the change that we’re presenting tonight, we’ve, the owner has agreed to combine those two lots and I believe she has already done that and probably has that in the documentation that we submitted with this application. So, she went down to the Tax Assessor and we’ve combined the lots. So, now that we’ve combined the lots there are certain parts of our variance request that have changed. Some things have been deleted and some things have been added. As far as, well again, the side yard setback that hasn’t changed because that deals with the proposed addition so that’s the primary request that we’re making. We’re basically matching the line of the existing house; the house actually tapers away from the side yard and what we’re proposing here is what you are going to end up with a side yard there (inaudible) that matches the existing. Two elements, one issue that went away from the original variance was the building coverage that’s required to be 10%, what we’re proposing is 6%. Again because we’ve added the lot, we get more lot area and that disappears. So that’s not a variance request. The lot coverage is still part of our variance request what’s required is 20%, what’s proposed is 28% so we’re asking for an 8% variance there. Again when we calculated the lot coverage for this application with everything all the impervious surfaces, the driveway, the existing house, the addition, the deck, the patio, the pool, I think even the pool, the tennis court, the shed and the gazebo that was all part of the calculation. So that even with the combination of the lot that’s going to be, that’s part of our request tonight. Then I think, I am going to let Code Compliance speak to this but I believe again part of the combination of the lots now the way you would look at this would be you have a house on Balmville Road, you have basically a tennis court and a pool behind it but if you look at this property from Chestnut Lane you would have basically a tennis court and a pool that are not behind the house, I guess, in the front yard. Even though they are set back from the front yard setback. So, I believe that’s also part of our variance request. In combining the lots, the owners do not want to remove the tennis court or the pool so they are hoping they will be able to retain the use of both of those. One thing that I did pick up in the variance request again is I guess its the tennis court is required to be screened which the owner would have no problem doing so we could certainly propose something to that effect tonight. I did not know that before we submitted the drawings so otherwise we would shown that on the drawings. So, that’s something I think we would definitely propose doing and the last and then I know now there is an issue with the wood shed and also the gazebo. What I’ve been told is that the wood shed is really not that important to them. I mean they would take it down or do whatever they needed to do. The gazebo they would like to leave where it is right now. I’m not quite sure what…again I’ll let Code Compliance speak to that issue. So, in short what had happened since I had been to the Board last and the owners really considered all their options here about combining the lots or not combining the lots and basically we looked at other ways they could achieve this expansion of their house. I’ve looked at what we could do inside the footprint of the garage, which would not require a variance, and basically they came to the conclusion that, no, they really need what was originally shown on these drawings, they really need an expansion of the bedrooms to take care of Mrs. Polhamus’ mother and that this original application is really what she wanted to do. So, you know as tough as it has been, she has come to the conclusion that this is really what they want and need.

Chairperson Cardone: I have a question then, have you applied for a Building Permit for the gazebo?

Mr. Coppola: Yes. I believe we applied for both Permits.

Mr. Mattina: They have applied for but they have not been reviewed yet.

Mr. Coppola: I thought we were denied on that.

Mr. Mattina: Joe, from Code Compliance, the Permits (applications) were submitted but they will be denied due to the fact that they are in the front yard, they are in your packets, but to sit down and deny them, I actually haven’t gotten to all of them yet. I think the gazebo; the pool and a shed all have applications with this package.

Mr. McKelvey: Would the whole pool be now considered as two front yards, the part of it that was on the other lot?

Mr. Mattina: Right the accessory structure, the front yard goes from the plane of the dwelling to a street line.

Mr. McKelvey: I just wanted to make that clear.

Mr. Mattina: Everything is to a street line. (inaudible)

Mr. Coppola: That’s the same issue with the gazebo because it shouldn’t be in the front of the house is what you are saying?

Mr. Mattina: Correct. Accessory structures can’t be closer to a street line than the plane of a dwelling, technically …

Mr. Coppola: From Chestnut Lane.

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Hughes: You have three front yards here now. 

Mr. Mattina: Two.

Chairperson Cardone: Two, because there is a house on the other side.

Mr. Hughes: What about Balmville? Don’t you get another one there too?

Mr. Coppola: Yeah, Balmville & Chestnut Lane.

Mr. Mattina: This one here and Chestnut.

Mr. Hughes: All right, so it’s…may I? What you’re telling us then by your chart on the bulk table is that you are supposed to have 150 ft in the width and you only have 109?

Mr. Coppola: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: And then your front yard is covered, your rear yard is covered but your side yards is required 30 ft and you only have 8.8?

Mr. Coppola: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: Both side yards your supposed to have 80 and you’re looking at 39.64?

Mr. Coppola: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: So, your building height, your lot coverage your lot coverage you are 8% over.

Mr. Coppola: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: So you’ve got five of them.

Mr. Coppola: I’ve got the side yard setback, the total of the two.

Mr. Hughes: Lot width?

Mr. Coppola: Lot width, I don’t think that needs a variance because I am not changing the lot. I don’t know, I mean…

Mr. Hughes: You are required to have 150 feet.

Mr. Donovan: No I think because you are increasing the degree of the non-conformity. 

Mr. Mattina: That takes care of that one.

Mr. Donovan: So, in other words the side yards are what they are now but there is an addition going on which increases the degree of non-conformity. So you lose the non-conforming protection even though you are not increasing your side yards. But the addition causes you to lose that protection which is the reason for those variances.

Mr. Hughes: The furtherance of non-conformity.

Chairperson Cardone: And, if you recall, this Board had suggested that the owner combine the two lots.

Mr. Hughes: Well it certainly improves the position of the project.


Mr. Manley: Just so I get this right, the five that we’re looking for…the five variances are having the accessory structures in the front yard; that’s one variance. Yes? The second one would be the increasing of the degree of the non-conformity of the lot width?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: For the side yard.

Mr. Manley: For the side yard. And, then you have the two other, the side yards and it needs to be 30 and the other one is 80, right? So, those are the two areas there?

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Manley: And, the last one would be the lot coverage?

Mr. Donnelly: I think, let’s try to run through it. We have tennis can’t be in a front yard, pool can’t be in a front yard, shed can’t be in a front yard, gazebo can’t be in a front yard. Although I think you are going to remove the shed? Is that your…?

Mr. Coppola: We would remove the shed, its not that important. 

Mr. Donnelly: Increasing the degree of non-conformity relative to the side yard and the lot coverage. 

Mr. Manley: O.K. 

Mr. Donnelly: That’s a summary of the variances. 

Mr. Manley: Now the lot coverage is that calculated with all of these structures in there already?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Coppola: Yes, everything. And that’s noted under the bulk table.

Mr. Manley: O.K. that’s what I just wanted to make sure is that you’re going up to 28% that’s including the pool, that’s including the tennis courts?

Mr. Coppola: Everything.

Mr. Manley: That’s everything. 

Mr. Mattina: The lot coverage actually went up due to the lot combination.

Mr. Manley: Right, when you combined the lots it brought the coverage up.

Mr. Hughes: And, I don’t know if either of you gentlemen mentioned the lot width, it’s supposed to be 150, it’s 109.8.

Mr. Donnelly: Well, let’s back up a second, we need lot…I think we just needed the side yard not the lot width because the lot width is what it is.

Mr. Hughes: So, that’s excluded automatically because of the physical constraints?

Mr. Donnelly: Correct. 

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I didn’t understand it to be that way. I have nothing else.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Yes?

Mr. Tierney: Hi, I’m Joseph Tierney I’m representing the next-door neighbor Ann Tierney. It appears the only thing that the applicant’s don’t have is a ‘still’. They’ve got lots of non-conforming uses there. There are so many of them, you had to list them say like four or five. So let’s just take it the easiest way I possibly think I can…is just to say as horrid as this hodgepodge has come out to be it’s a lovely little…they’ve tried to make it an estate on barely two parcels that make up an acre, which is cool, but to squeeze in an addition at 8 foot boundary line that my, the person I’m representing is the neighbor and it’s them who it’s going to encroach upon. This lady right here this is who is going have the encroachment. She’s tolerated 38 years of non-conforming use, of swimming pools and tennis courts because it’s nice in the area, it looks fine and gazebos, all of this stuff with no Building Permits. I mean who cares that there’s rules and regulations. Ten years ago the property was turned over to the applicants and they’ve had all this time to do something. They also have not done it and said that they would remove the non-conforming uses in order to get the variance and now they want to give you another front yard so they’ve finally done, they owned both properties why not combine them, drop the lot line which is the right thing to do but to try to convolute and confuse everybody with extra front yards and side yards, even one of the Board members, he thought there was three front yards now there is two. O.K.? So, is it a side yard variance for a non-conforming issue or is it a front yard variance? It really appears that there is a deliberate attempt to convolute and confuse the people on what the criteria is of the property. So, regardless if you approve the 38 years of non-conforming use and finally give them the permission to have it there since they didn’t get the Building Permits, that’s O.K. Keep the swimming pool, don’t fill it in, keep the tennis court, don’t rip it up just put some screening in it like you’re supposed to. Keep the gazebo, take down the wood shed, I don’t care but don’t come over more closer to my mother’s property, it’s already 8 feet there. If they don’t want to build in their garage, which could be done so nice, and it wouldn’t cause anybody any commotion, I’m sorry, but you can’t have everything. That’s all. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other comments from the public? Any other questions or comments from the Board? 

Mr. McKelvey: Ann (Tierney) your house is not directly along side this house is it?

Ms. Tierney: Are you talking to me?

Chairperson Cardone: If you could point out on the map exactly where your house is located?

Mr. McKelvey: Where your house is.

Ms. Tierney: I’m Ann Tierney, the neighbor, I’m right next-door, I’m 67 (Balmville Road) and Mrs. Nelson is 65 (Balmville Road).

Mr. Tierney: Right about here.

Mr. McKelvey: Could you bring that up?

Chairperson Cardone: Joe if you could point it out right here on this.

Mr. Tierney: Yes. I’ll show you.

Chairperson Cardone: The actual location of your house.

Mr. Tierney: Yes, see everything up and down, she sees this everyday, she is right about here.

Chairperson Cardone: Right about there?

Mr. Tierney: Right, so here’s her drive way and she comes down here and sees this everyday in and out, in and out, in and out.

Chairperson Cardone: In other words her house is not right here?

Mr. Tierney: No, her yard is right here and when they put this addition on here, see, there is already stuff there, patios and stuff and it’s going to come right in here, it’s going to crowd up in there and up on over here when it could be done here. But she will see it everyday boom, boom, boom, boom this way boom, boom, boom, up and down everyday in and out.  

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Any other questions or comments? If not, I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we close the Public Hearing.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second to that?

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Ronald Hughes: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Brenda Drake: Recuse





Ruth Eaton: Absent

Mr. Coppola: Thank you.

 






(Time Noted – 8:37 PM) 

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007         (Resumption for decision: 9:42 PM)

POLHAMUS & CARSTROM

65 BALMVILLE ROAD, NBGH







(43-3-34.2) R-1 ZONE 

Applicant is seeking area variances increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback, the maximum allowable surface coverage to build a rear addition to residence, to allow a tennis court in a front yard, tennis courts shall be screened from view and to allow a pool in a front yard.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Polhamus & Carstrom at 65 Balmville Road seeking area variances increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback, the maximum allowable surface coverage to build a rear addition to residence, to allow a tennis court in a front yard, tennis courts shall be screened from view and to allow a pool in a front yard, also included a gazebo and a shed was also included.

Mr. Manley: I think what we are looking at here are quite a few approvals, the addition they are looking for approval on, they are looking for approval of a pool, a tennis court, gazebo and a wood shed. I think that it’s extremely excessive especially based on the area they’re in. I have no problem granting, provided they get the necessary approvals through Code Compliance with the tennis court and the pool. The gazebo is really not a big issue but it still needs a permit, in my mind, but I just think that adding the addition is going to just throw this thing way over.

Chairperson Cardone: We could vote on those separately. Vote on the addition by itself and then vote on the current structures that are in the front yard, the lot having two front yards. We have had many of those issues before us before where an applicant has had two front yards and what would traditionally look like the rear yard or a side yard actually becoming a front yard because it’s fronting on a road but we could do that separately.

Mr. Manley: Right, because if they didn’t combine the lots, had they not combined the lots they would not have been able to keep the tennis court.

Chairperson Cardone: Correct.

Mr. Manley: Now that they have combined the lots they can at least have the option of keeping the tennis court which they’ve opted to want to do. Mr. Canfield, according to the Code the tennis courts have to be screened, which currently they are not?

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct.  

Mr. McKelvey: The pool has to have a fence?

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct.

Mr. Manley: So, I guess, if we’re going to vote on it separately and we’re going to…I would certainly make a motion for the items, the outstanding items, those items that the variance be granted but I would want to ensure that everything is properly set to Code.

Mr. Donovan: So then that would be, not to put words in your mouth, but if I understand it correctly it would be a motion to allow the tennis court in a front yard…

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: …to allow the pool in a front yard?

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: …to allow the gazebo?

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: …to allow the shed?

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: …subject to compliance with all applicable and required Building Codes?

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: And Permits.

Mr. Manley: Well that would be Building Codes.

Mr. Hughes: Without the addition, is that what you are saying?

Mr. Manley: Well, we are going to take that up separately.

Chairperson Cardone: We can take that up separately.

Mr. Hughes: Can we segment that? 

Mr. Donovan: Yes you may.

Mr. Hughes: I have to agree with my colleague, I mean to me, if they are not willing to reconfigure that addition to go in back into the garage and …

Chairperson Cardone: Right now we are not discussing the addition though, we have a motion. Is that correct, Mr. Manley?

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: We have a motion on the floor and we’re looking for a second for the motion, which just involves those other structures.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Mr. Hughes: Can we have discussion now because I think we should on a couple of things.

Mr. Manley: Sure. 

Chairperson Cardone: On those particular …

Mr. Hughes: Right. Are we legally within our confines by not including the lot width and all the other stuff besides what he …

Mr. Donovan: Well, lot width we decided does not require a variance.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: The remaining variance is the coverage…

Mr. Hughes: The percentage of the coverage. 

Mr. Donovan: …and the side yard.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: And, I’m going to, there is going to need to be a separate motion for that after this.

Mr. Hughes: All right, I want to make sure that everybody understands what’s going on here. I am not sure if I do completely myself.  

Mr. Donovan: Well what part don’t you understand because I can’t have you not understand. 

Mr. Hughes: I don’t know how you are going to end up with another motion on top of this if the addition isn’t included. The addition is not included in your …

Chairperson Cardone: No, the addition is not included in it. 

Mr. Donovan: No. The motion is …

Mr. Hughes: Then I understand.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for clarifying that. But there has been a lot of hodgepodge here.

Mr. Donovan: I understand, not a lot gets me excited but when a Board Member says that I don’t understand that gets my heart racing.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I’ll keep that in mind. 

Mr. Manley: The only thing with regard to screening would be apparently that would be up to …

Mr. Donovan: Let me just ask Code Compliance. Now typically, I just see that it’s in the Code, it doesn’t appear to require any site plan review or anything. So, if an applicant came to you for a tennis court you would make the determination on appropriate screening? 

Mr. Canfield: Yes, that’s correct. The Code is very vague as far as the type and style of screening. I believe you are correct, 100 percent; yes it would be up to us to determine what is satisfactory.

Mr. Manley: Jerry, would screening be 8 foot fences with the interlacing things, so you can’t see the tennis courts, so?

Mr. Canfield: Well, no, no.

Mr. Manley: Or, no?

Mr. Canfield: No. The screening has to somehow interact with the requirement of fence height, which is only 6 feet in a residential area. So, it would not exceed that.

Mr. Hughes: Even for a tennis court?

Mr. Canfield: No.

Mr. Manley: I guess the big question is, is the purpose of the screening for the sound, the noise or I’m trying to get an understanding of what…? 

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, you’re splitting hairs there, but, a…

Mr. Donovan: I think that in terms of the motion, its got to meet Building Codes and Code Compliance issues, that’s covered.

Mr. Canfield: Right, I don’t think it’s a noise issue at all because screening, you know, is not going to stop the noise it’s probably visual.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: …for a visual effect.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Are we clear? And do we have a second to Mr. Manley’s motion?

Ms. Gennarelli: That was Mr. McKelvey, I believe.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second if you need a second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Ronald Hughes: No

Robert Kunkel: No

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Brenda Drake: Recuse





Ruth Eaton: Absent

Ms. Gennarelli: And, Brenda Drake is recused.

Mr. Donovan: So, that’s three affirmative votes that we had?

Ms. Gennarelli: That’s three yes and two negative.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. so, the motion fails. 

Chairperson Cardone: The motion fails. Now we go to the addition. 

Mr. Donovan: Someone needs to make a motion.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on the addition?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for disapproval?

Mr. Manley: I would, at this point, make a motion that we disapprove the addition.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

Mr. Manley: Do you need the specific…?

Mr. Donovan: Let me just say, in terms of the denial of what we are denying the request for increasing the degree of non-conformity relative to the side yard and the overage on the maximum of the surface coverage.

Mr. Manley: Correct. 

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Ronald Hughes: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Brenda Drake: Recuse








Ruth Eaton: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for disapproval is carried.

Mr. Donovan: The net result then is the entire application is denied.

(Time Noted – 9:50 PM)

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007                   (Time Noted – 8:37 PM) 

JOVAN BOJINOVIC & KIM S. LIM &
 5505 ROUTE 9 W, MARLBORO

TYLER EQUIPMENT CORPORATION
(8-1-15.1) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation &/or a use variance for a change in use to a new use – not listed – heavy equipment sales and rental and repair.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Jovan Bojinovic & Kim S. Lim & Tyler Equipment Corporation.

Ms. Sheridan: Good evening, my name is Kathleen Sheridan and I am with the law firm of Drake, Loeb and I am here on behalf of Tyler Equipment this evening. This is, as you know a continuation of the July 26th hearing. Tyler Equipment is a dealership of heavy construction equipment. They currently have bases in Connecticut and Massachusetts. They are operating in a temporary location in Marlboro and would like very much to locate their executive offices here in Newburgh. They are in contract to purchase property located at 5505 Route 9W. Today, what we’re here for this evening is to reiterate what we’re asking for and that is interpretation of Section 185-9, the Use and Bulk Requirements Table to be interpreted to allow the uses intended at this site. As requested by Mr. Donnelly at the last hearing we have submitted a narrative which we think offers a good deal of detail as to exactly what we’re proposing to do at that site. Primarily a retail operation with the predominate manufacturer being that of Volvo Equipment but I have parts of the team here some which have come distances to be here tonight. They are very enthusiastic about the project. I have Brook Tyler III who is President, Bill Tyler is Executive Vice President, John Hoey who is Regional Manager and he is currently working at the Marlboro location, as you know, I also have Brook Tyler IV a Branch Manager, and Wayne Neckles the contractor who has done the floor plan which also was submitted. I realize it was a little small scale but we do have a larger floor plan here tonight.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board? If you recall last month the Board had requested additional information and that should be in everyone’s packet and also I believe some of the Board Members have visited the Marlboro site. I know I have seen it.


Mr. McKelvey: I have seen it.

Ms. Sheridan: If I might add that the proposed use of this site will primarily be a retail service location and so in spite of the fact that it’s not listed in the bulk use requirements this is typical in the industry of retail heavy equipment and the uses such as repair, rental, maintenance we would assert are actually incidental and quite customary in this industry. So those uses we would maintain are incidental to the use of the retail sales.

Mr. Donovan: If I can just to be clear under the use tables, are you saying you are or you are not qualified under retail of personal service stores under uses subject to site plan approval by the Planning Board?

Ms. Sheridan: We are saying that we are.

Mr. Donovan: You are saying that you are and you sell heavy equipment? Can you just describe what kind of heavy equipment that you sell? 

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): Basically the easiest way to describe it would be road-building equipment.

Mr. Donovan: I am a lawyer, what is road-building equipment mean?

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): Road-building equipment would be front-end loaders, excavators, compaction equipment for rolling asphalt and dirt.

Mr. Donovan: And, if I decide I have a house on 20 acres and I want to put in a long driveway, could I come to your facility and buy the equipment?

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): Absolutely. 

Mr. Donovan: And lease the equipment?

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): Correct.

Mr. Donovan: Do you typically do it to individuals or would it be to businesses?

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): I would say primarily contractors not private individuals, very little use by private individuals just because of the size of the equipment. 

Mr. McKelvey: You say in here that you probably have maybe the most fifteen vehicles on the property.

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): As far as the inventory is concerned? Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, well this says the site will feature both off street and commercial parking in accordance with the Town’s Zoning Code parking regulations. It is estimated that fifteen items of equipment will be located at the site at any given time.

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): Yes sir that would be our inventory.

Mr. McKelvey: They will be outside on this property?

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): They will be housed in the rear of the property. Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: Because up in Marlboro you can see them from the highway.

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): Correct. 

Mr. Hughes: What does your typical floor plan include for excavating equipment on an area and how much acreage to you require for that type of machinery now? For a car you get a 10x20 as a parking space but we’re talking about…

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): Wayne, could you throw some numbers for me?

Mr. Neckles: I’ll try to help you out the best I can with it. My name is Wayne Neckles, Neckles Builders, we did put a preliminary site plan together but we didn’t bring one with us tonight only because we didn’t think the Board was looking for it but typically some of the excavators they have there sit on a footprint of approximately 15x25 feet I think would be a good number to use if you wanted to use that as a footprint area. And, to place calculations around the perimeter of the site…

Mr. Hughes: So, 400 sq ft for a vehicle of that size times 15 give you quite a bit of…

Mr. Neckles: I think that’s very reasonable. 

Mr. Hughes: …that gives you quite a bit of…

Mr. Neckles: Yes, and the fact is is that they have different sizes, but I mean I think that is the average size.

Mr. Hughes: I’m very familiar around construction myself but in order for the public and the Board to understand, let’s say you have a couple of excavators and you have a Volvo 20 yard dump or whatever, if you get fifteen of those on site you’d better have an acre and a half, two acres to house them, no?

Mr. Neckles: Well, yes, the way that the property is set up right now there is parking at the rear of this structure and actually on the sides of it. Like I said, I don’t believe we brought a site plan with us but there is enough adequate parking around the perimeter of this in order to do that and when we go through the planning process its required for us to put a fence around the front of the property, you know, we would of course be up for that.

Mr. Hughes: What hours? Repairs all night all night until 10:00?

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): Absolutely, jackhammers and all. No. Five days, probably 7 to 5.

Mr. Hughes: 7 in the morning to 5 at night.

Mr. McKelvey: In here says 7:30.

Mr. Hughes: We are not cross-examining you but liked to get a general idea.

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): O.K., we’ll go with 7:30, we will give them a little slack.

Mr. McKelvey: You said 7 and I read 7:30 in here. 7:30 to 5 Monday to Friday.

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): Correct.

Ms. Drake: I see the site has an existing septic system. I presume you won’t be driving over that for parking your vehicles and so forth?

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): Correct.

Ms. Drake: Because it does go all the way back to an existing septic tank and a pump station back there that you trying to get your vehicles back and around that might be an issue.

Mr. Neckles: How are you doing? Wayne Neckles again. We are going to research the septic system to make sure that it’s HD; it’s a heavy-duty septic tank and also heavy-duty galleys and things that are in place. To be honest with you we are not exactly sure what’s in the ground there but it is going to be researched when it goes to planning and at this stage of it we just wanted to make sure we get past the use before we dug any deeper with it but whatever is needed to be done to bring the septic system up to speed such that it can run the equipment over and of course they want to do that to ensure that the septic problems aren’t because of use.

Mr. Hughes: Are you going to have showers and things of that nature that will be incorporated in the bathroom facilities?

Mr. Neckles: We do have a shower facility, yes we do and there is a shower provided on the floor plan.

Mr. Hughes: I thought I read it in your narrative somewhere a reference to seventeen employees that are presumed to be on site?

Mr. Neckles: Yes, that’s what we targeted for.

Mr. Hughes: What do we figure on that Jerry (Canfield), 10 gallons per head per day or something like that?

Mr. Canfield: I believe so.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I would really like to have some more information about the details of what’s there and if you have anything on record, files if you could get them to us. There’s no water in this building, do you have well or is there Town water there?

Mr. Neckles: To be honest with you, I don’t… it’s a well, yes.

Ms. Drake: It’s an existing well up front that and you also have a stream in the back.

Mr. McKelvey: Jerry (Canfield), I think the water line that goes there goes down the cemetery to the power plant.

Mr. Hughes: I don’t know that there is water there. Jerry (Canfield) do you know?

Mr. Canfield: What’s that?

Mr. Hughes: Is there water there?

Chairperson Cardone: Town water?

Mr. Canfield: Not that far north.

Mr. McKelvey: It goes down along side to the power plant…to the cemetery.

Mr. Canfield: It stops at Post Road.

Mr. Hughes: Post Road it ends.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Half mile down the road.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Manley: The applicant is in contract for the property or they already purchased the property?

Ms. Sheridan: They are in contract for the property. The property is of no use to them if we are unable to succeed here. I also would like to add that we have all intentions of doing things the right way. We’re going for site plan approval if we clear this hurdle. I mean, we’re…and as to the water use, yes, we estimate seventeen employees. This is a young company but it’s in its adolescence. It’s kind of a growth plan and we didn’t want to limit ourselves initially we won’t have seventeen people there. We realize the water has to accommodate that but this type of industry also involves a sales force that, which I guess that Mr. Tyler could better speak to you but that comes on site, reports in and a lot of the sales and demonstrations are done as you may know out in the field for this sort of thing. Is that correct, Mr. Tyler?

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): Yes that’s correct. The possibility of having seventeen people for an 8-hour day on site would be very remote.

Mr. McKelvey: I don’t think seventeen people would be taking showers there everyday either.

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): I would think not. We work them hard, but.

Mr. Donovan: If I may? All the questions are obviously important questions and good questions but really the application before us and the issue here tonight is whether or not the use proposed is a permitted use in the zone. Whether it falls within the definition of retail and personal service stores as listed in the bulk table. If it does, then there is nothing else for this Board to do. If we render that interpretation it goes to the Planning Board and the Planning Board undertakes all these issues in their site plan review. If the opinion of this Board that it does not then the applicant has to make a determination as to whether or not they are going to pursue a use variance.

Mr. Hughes: So, our target is strictly interpretation?

Mr. Donovan: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Thank you for answering those questions. Once you figure worst case then there is no surprise.

Mr. Tyler (Brook Tyler III): Your welcome, thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: And, I think one of the things we are looking at is the percentage of the area that would be used for service.

Mr. Donovan: Yes. And in the counselor’s letter of August 17, 2007 on page 2 there is a delineation that 13.5% will be dedicated to executive office space and conference rooms, 37.6% will be dedicated to retail sales and inventory, 8% maintenance and shipping and receiving 12.7%, 11.4% service area and 16.7% is the enclosed wash space. All those things are delineated in their correspondence.

Chairperson Cardone: I’d like to read into the record the Orange County Department of Planning report

This department has reviewed the material submitted regarding the above referenced site plan in accordance with Section 239, paragraphs I and M of General Municipal Law and do not have significant inter-community or county wide considerations to your attention. Although this specific use is not mentioned in any of the Use and Bulk Tables for the zoning districts in the Town of Newburgh it appears to be more similar to uses described in the Use and Bulk Table for IB district than to uses described in the B district tables. The Town may wish to consider a zone change for this property. We recommend local determination of the matter. 

Ms. Sheridan: And, if I might be just allowed to reiterate, which I know you are aware, but we consider this operation to be quite similar to other operations along this corridor those being Bobcat Equipment and United Rental who also deals in these very same types of operations, retail sales, service, maintenance. That being said, yes we see them as being analogous but we kind of in this operation pride ourselves on appearances and while you were able to go out and visit the Marlboro site you weren’t able to go to the Connecticut or the Massachusetts location. But just to say we pride ourselves on the appearance of the operation and we would do the same here in Newburgh.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Drake: I would make a motion to close...

Mr. Donovan: Before you do that, may I just ask the applicant a question? If the Board issues a…and the question goes to whether or not the Public Hearing should be closed…because there’s the potential that there is an adverse interpretation. I believe your application is in the alternative. If there is an adverse interpretation then you want to apply for a use variance so you want a use variance considered but I don’t think there has been any evidence to say differently. There has been no evidence submitted that would support a use variance application. Is that still your intention?

Ms. Sheridan: That is our intention.

Mr. Donovan: So would you, and I would have to discuss how, if the Board would want to do this. Because then, I would assume you are going to request time to submit that information.

Ms. Sheridan: I see what you are asking. Is there a way that we can do this on a contingency basis?

Mr. Donovan: If we close the Public Hearing, O.K. and the interpretation is it’s not a retail now the Public Hearing has been closed so and there is certainly not evidence here that would justify the use variance. So I think it’s their fervent hope and desire that we issue a favorable determination because we all know how difficult a use variance is. But if there is an unfavorable determination on the interpretation they still want to apply for a use variance so the question for the Board is, do you want give them time to do that? Leave the Public Hearing open?

Mr. Hughes: Do they have to go back and start all over again if we determine that it’s not?

Chairperson Cardone: Not if we leave it open.

Mr. Donovan: Well, not if we leave it open, because that was the reason for my question.

Mr. Hughes: Well, there is no sense in painting anybody in a corner on this thing. Everybody understand?

Ms. Sheridan: I think so, we understand quite well, we would appreciate, we appreciate your raising that issue for us and of course, it is our fervent hope that it will be interpreted in our favor. However, given the enthusiasm for this project and the effort and expense that they have gone through thus far, just trying to do things right, we would of course respectfully request that it be left open if that is an option. The question then becomes, I guess from our perspective, how will we know where we stand, you know, and when? Not that I am pushing for a decision just that at what point do we decide that we need to come back here before you?

Chairperson Cardone: I think there are questions that we have to ask counsel before we can proceed any further.

Ms. Sheridan: Fair enough.

Mr. Hughes: If I may? And correct me if I am wrong we either have the right to keep it open 62 days or you could know tonight.

Mr. Donovan: I think the issue would be if they are going to receive an unfavorable determination, they are going to want to submit additional information for the use variance and under those circumstances I think that the Public Hearing should be left open so the public has the opportunity to the extent they want to, to comment on that additional information. 

Mr. Hughes: And at the same time the criteria that fits the use is difficult to prove under these circumstances because the land is worth something.

Mr. Donovan: That is an excellent legal opinion, you’re right.

Mr. Hughes: Are you with me?

Ms. Drake: If we were to leave the Public Hearing open for them to submit the use variance, the mailings that were done were not actually for a use variance though, right?

Mr. Donovan: I think the application, yes they were.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, it was.  

Mr. Donovan: They were, yes they were. 

Ms. Sheridan: The application was.

Mr. Donovan: Actually, going back that’s what I wanted everybody to know, the application was in the alternative.


Ms. Drake: All right.

Mr. Hughes: They were going to get the favorable interpretation or proceed with the use?

Mr. Donovan: That’s correct. That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Does everybody understand?

Mr. Donovan: So, if you want you can defer this matter until later this evening at which time you can make a determination to or you could vote to discontinue the vote and carry it to September or you could defer it until after, till later in the meeting.

Mr. Hughes: Then maybe I should ask one more question, if I may, Ms. Chair?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Having heard all that is there something else you want to tell us now where you think you are entitled to that interpretation, you mentioned comps (comparables) earlier in your conversation and narratives about things along the same avenue there?  Is there anything else you’d like to add to that at this point? 

Ms. Sheridan: I guess just that given that those uses have been in place we did request documents based on Bobcat’s operation and based on United Rentals, we were unable to find any special allowances that would permit them to conduct those operations in the B district. However, the uses as far as we’re concerned analogous and very much the same except that we hope to do it better in that sense. But we do, one big issue that we may encounter, this temporary location which we have not been able to taper to our liking and because it is a rented location, I think the lease is up in October of this year. Is that correct? We’re up against the clock and I guess everyone is who comes before you. But we’ll have, if indeed it is extended, we’d appreciate that extension but at the same time we wouldn’t want to be in a position where we have to withdraw based on being out of luck and having to give up the project.

Chairperson Cardone: My feeling is to defer to later in the meeting, that’s my own opinion, I don’t how the rest of the Board feels about that.

Mr. Kunkel: That is no problem.

Mr. Donovan: We don’t need a motion to do that since we are going to revisit later then we can.

Mr. Hughes: Do we need a motion to keep the Public Hearing open?

Mr. Kunkel: No.

Mr. Donovan: Not at this time because we are going to defer it until later in the meeting. We need to do something before you go home tonight though.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Ms. Sheridan: Thank you very much.

 (Time Noted – 8:50 PM) 

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007          (Resumption for decision:  9:50 PM)

JOVAN BOJINOVIC & KIM S. LIM &
 5505 ROUTE 9 W, MARLBORO

TYLER EQUIPMENT CORPORATION
(8-1-15.1) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation &/or a use variance for a change in use to a new use – not listed – heavy equipment sales and rental and repair.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Jovan Bojinovic & Kim Lim & Tyler Equipment Corporation looking at the interpretation first. Do we have discussion on the interpretation? 

Mr. Hughes: Well, I looked at it pretty closely and the difference between the IB and the B, I think it’s a far-reaching stretch for this to be in compliance. I am not satisfied with it and that the comparable sales that go on with similar comps that were sited, I believe are not in order either. I don’t think that they can be justified as a fair comp in this context because I believe some of those went in under the radar and just set up shop and it was before anything could be done about it. 

Chairperson Cardone: I would agree with you, it would seem to me that the best resolution would be to appeal for a change in the zoning for that particular area.

Mr. Hughes: Or an overlay. It’s just, it’s too critical an area, and there is too much traffic and too many things going on in that area to let it run wild and go that far reaching…

Mr. Donovan: Well, the issue would be whether or not the Board feels that the proposed use qualifies as retail and personal service as allowed in the B District and I think what I’m hearing from the Board is you have some serious reservations about that.

Mr. Manley: Well I think it’s probably the right business for the right area if it was zoned properly for that area already and that was a permitted use in that area. The big issue that I think that I’m battling with is by giving an interpretation or changing the interpretation could potentially mean that we could wind up with these type of facilities in areas of the Town that are B zones that would really not be appropriate. That’s I think the big balancing…

Mr. Donovan: Well, again, just the issue before us is whether or not the use proposed falls within retail and personal service. Then, if you feel it does then it…

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t feel that it does.

Mr. Donovan: …then if you feel that it doesn’t then apropos of our prior discussion then you would look to make a motion to continue the Public Hearing until September, presumably so you have the opportunity to either submit additional information relative to the use variance or if you think it’s an easier road to hoe to, to apply for the zone change. 

Ms. Sheridan: Yes, hi, Kathleen Sheridan, I appreciate the extension of time with regard to the Public Hearing. I just wonder if the Board had any discussion if it’s not a retail operation then what does the Board consider it to be? What’s the reservation as to it? I mean construction equipment sales, retail operations are a pretty specific industry and it’s, the fact that it’s not listed in the B district to me just…I think it’s close enough to what’s out there already. I guess my question for the Board is what do you consider this operation to be then?

Mr. Hughes: Industrial. It services the industry of building and construction and excavating so because it’s not specifically spelled out in that zone my own opinion of it is that it is industrial. 

Ms. Sheridan: And, so that leaves us if I understand with the Board’s permission with an extension to the October (September) hearing.

Mr. Donovan: Yes, it’s an adjournment of the Public Hearing because if you want to submit additional information on the interpretation obviously you have the ability to do that. But I didn’t want to put the applicant in a position not to be able to be able to prove your case relative to a use variance. 

Ms. Sheridan: O.K. We appreciate that. Thank you. 

Mr. McKelvey: Or you can go for a zoning change.

Chairperson Cardone: But, right now we need a motion to …

Mr. Donovan: …to continue this until the September meeting.

Mr. Manley: I’ll make a motion that it be continued and left open.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  Robert Kunkel: No

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll vote no because I do believe it falls within the use variance, permissibility under the authority of this Board. However, I am the only one that holds that view so I urge you to go for a zoning change.   

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

                                                                                  Ruth Eaton: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

                                                                        (Time Noted – 9:58 PM) 

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23 2007                          (Time Noted – 8:52 PM) 

COLBY-RAE ACQUISITION & 
FLEETWOOD DRIVE & BEECHWOOD CT,


   DEVELOPMENT CO., LLC
(87-2-1.2) R-2 ZONE                      (NBGH)

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area, lot width, lot depth, front yard, rear yard and side yards setbacks for a nine (9) Lot sub-division.

Chairperson Cardone: I just want to mention if people have a copy of the Agenda that the Colby Rae will be held over to the September 27th meeting.

                                                                                       (Time Noted – 8:52 PM) 

Chairperson Cardone: The Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel over legal questions raised this evening. I would ask if you would step out into the hallway in the interest of time. 








(Time Noted – 8:54 PM)

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007                      (Time Noted – 9:59 PM) 

OTHER BOARD BUSINESS

LYNNE & JOHN DELESKY

42 PROSPECT HILL ROAD, WLKL







(1-1-27.42) A/R ZONE    

(Applicant is seeking to keep a prior built detached garage.)                                                

Chairperson Cardone: I have a letter from Lynne & John Delesky, they are requesting that we re-open their case and everyone has a copy of that letter and I’m looking for a motion to that effect.

Ms. Drake: Based on my understanding, we could either do a motion to re-open the Public Hearing but they would still have to re-submit an application, with fees and so forth. So, it really wouldn’t matter if they re-open it or submit a new application, is that correct?

Mr. Donovan: Yes, typically with the re-hearing it’s to get the same relief. The applicant says I want the same relief that I requested before. It seems to be ‘Revision I’ or ‘Revision II’ that maybe there is the opportunity or the applicant saying I want different relief. I can perhaps comply and I think the applicant is free to submit a new application seeking that relief. An application for a re-hearing would be the same relief, if I am making that clear?

Mr. Delesky: Could I speak? 

Mr. Donovan: It’s up to the Chair.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Delesky: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Just take one of the microphones.

Mr. Delesky: John Delesky, 42 Prospect Hill. It wasn’t quite clear. Could you explain it to me again? I mean we’re…

Mr. Donovan: A motion for an application to re-hear the case, a re-hearing is on the same relief. In other words I want to keep the building where it is. So, the Board needs to unanimously approve that application. If you seek different relief and I’ve just talked about ‘revision I’ where you are going to essentially reduce the size to what would appear to be and we only have the letter so far, would appear to be a conforming size, it would need a height variance only that’s different relief and you are free to submit a new application for that.

Mr. Delesky: That’s kind of what we’re looking for to make it 1000 sq ft and to look for a variance from one-foot of height.

Mr. Donovan: So, what my suggestion would be then is just like you go through the same process as before. Fill out a new application.

Mr. Delesky: That would be with the Building Department? Or…?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: I don’t fill out the application so if that’s the…

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, submit an application, Joe they need one, is that correct?

Mr. Mattina: Joe Mattina, Code Compliance, I have talked to Mr. Delesky before about moving the rear of his accessory structure in twenty feet or sixteen feet. Now, I need an interpretation before you re-open this to determine whether that’s going to be calculated in the square footage to relieve him from that one variance. Being denied already I’m not making that decision myself. I was going to leave it to the Board.

Chairperson Cardone: But they’re, as I understand it, there were two possibilities here that was # II. Right, that was ‘Revision II’?

Mr. Mattina: I only know of one revision where he’s going to move the walls in sixteen feet and take down the sidewall. 

Chairperson Cardone: And, leave an overhang? 

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: No. My understanding is that one was leaving the overhang with the concrete beneath it. I understood that as ‘Revision 2’. And what I am reading in the first paragraph is that it would just go to 1000 sq ft by moving that wall and eliminating the overhang. In that case, he would only need the one-foot height variance.

Mr. Mattina: Right, but as far as the last discussion I had, he wanted to leave the overhang over the slab. That was why I was requesting the interpretation since the roof covers the accessory structure, is the square footage of the covered slab part of the accessory structure? Since it doesn’t have walls, it doesn’t count in the definition of an accessory building. An accessory building needs a roof and walls.

Chairperson Cardone: But would that become a carport?

Mr. Hughes: And, can you have a carport?

Mr. Mattina: No, he would have to protect from being a carport with bollards or something along that line.

Mr. Donovan: All right, that’s different than what we understood it to be.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Set forth in the first paragraph of Mr. Delesky’s letter of August 14th.

Mr. Mattina: Well that’s why I told him I would ask for the interpretation of the square footage tonight and I would get back with him after this meeting and then we would arrange stuff. 

Chairperson Cardone: Well I think that the feeling of the Board, if I may say this, is that we would be counting that square footage.

Mr. Mattina: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: It’s under the roof.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Ms. Drake: Yes.


Mr. Mattina: Well, like I said…

Mr. Hughes: You have a floor and a roof.

Mr. Mattina: Right, the definition of an accessory building consists of roof and walls. So, the square footage is it or is it not part of the accessory building because it doesn’t have walls?

Chairperson Cardone: It does have one wall.

Mr. Mattina: Well, along the three other sides, right.

Mr. Delesky: Could I speak?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Delesky: There’s 24 foot trusses if it’s 24 x 50 that would be 1200. Those trusses need to be supported 24; one side of the trusses would be inside the building the other truss support would be outside so there would be about 4 foot of pad left. So it would be like? 20 x 50 with 4 foot of pad in the back.

Mr. Hughes: No roof, just the 4-foot concrete?

Mr. Delesky: Well…I guess…that we could…the roof has to be over the trusses obviously to protect them from the snow and the weather so it would be 24 foot wide.

Mr. Hughes: By how long?

Mr. Delesky: But the walls would be 20 x 50 so it would be inside enclosed would be 1000 but there would be 4 foot by 50 of a pad. That would be outside.

Mr. Mattina: Would it be 16 x 20 I mean 16 x 50?

Ms. Drake: The pad and then the roof would be…

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Delesky: Well, yeah, yeah, if yeah actually if I have to I’ll cut the cement. I’ll cut it with a saw and backhoe it out, if I have to.

Mr. Mattina: I don’t want to make the interpretation of the square footage being denied already, I’m…

Mr. Hughes: Suppose you cut the roof off and then that concrete slab is there what happens to that? Then the rain and everything gets on it, does it wander in your garage? It’s not a good situation.

Mr. Delesky: I have talked to a builder and an engineer he said there’s ways that we can protect that. I’ve thought of that already.

Mr. Hughes: We’re not getting it down to the square inch here now but if you are on a certain dimension and you got to chop it to that and we can live that and you can live with that, that’s fine I would think. I don’t know what the rest of the Board feels about it but it was built without Permits to begin with. If they had filed Permits then, they would have known that they shouldn’t have built something that big. The other part of it is, we don’t want to go through the thing about unanimously re-opening and put you out of business by that because I think that can happen. You’d be better just to re-apply and go over through this again rather than try to re-open it. I think it would save you time and money.

Mr. Delesky: You mean re-apply through… 

Mr. Hughes: Through the Building Department, with your narrative saying where the roof is going to get cut and how long it’s going to be and a little diagram and then you are only going to need the one foot variance. You won’t need to be here for anything else.

Ms. Drake: Anything that has an overhang…

Mr. Hughes: Have I overlooked anything?

Ms. Drake: Anything that has an overhang if that’s … 

Mr. Donovan: Well subject to what the plan looks like when we get it.

Mr. Delesky: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: So, if you re-apply with your plan and the dimensions and they O.K. it and you’re going to us for…

Mr. Donovan: Well, they are not going to O.K. it; they are going to deny it.

Mr. Hughes: Yes. Right.

Mr. Delesky: It’s going to come here anyway.

Mr. Hughes: Right. But you’re here for the one-foot only, for the height.

Mr. Donovan: Well, we don’t know that till we see the plans because I don’t know that...

Mr. Hughes: Well the building isn’t going change this; it’s only going to change this.

Mr. Donovan: Yes, except that our understanding was a little bit different since it’s your intention…I shouldn’t put words in your mouth. Is it your intention or not your intention to have that roof overhang there?

Mr. Delesky: It’s got to be, it’s got to be …if it’s going to be 20 x 50 it’s got to be a 4 foot overhang because the truss support is under the overhang. I mean it would be outside the building structure. It would be like a pavilion almost.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Manley: But how far would that pavilion protrude from the…

Mr. Hughes: 4 feet. 

Mr. Delesky: Yeah about 4 feet.

Mr. Hughes: You’re 12 foot under your posts and 24 the other way?

Mr. Delesky: The trusses are 24. I think it’s like 8 or so feet holding up the trusses but I mean you can’t do much with the truss supports, they’re there. 

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Mr. Delesky: But I mean you could move the wall in. The wall is not carrying the weight, the trusses are. 

Mr. Mattina: One thing with cutting the roof back, you can’t do that with the truss construction. It would render trusses unsafe.

Mr. Delesky: Right you would still have to have the roof over the truss.

Mr. Hughes: Once you get past the truss you got purlins that come out right? You got rebar purlins in there, is it all metal? The roof structure? Or are they just out and out trusses?

Mr. Mattina: They are regular stick trusses with (inaudible)

Mr. Delesky: 24 wood trusses.

Mr. Canfield: You can’t cut those.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, no.

Mr. Delesky: Can’t.

Mr. Canfield: It depends how they run.

Mr. Delesky: Right, but I mean it’s like, the trusses would be, you know, supported here and here but this…the wall would move in 4 feet from the trusses.

Mr. Canfield: The trusses go this way?

Ms. Drake: So, therefore taking this diagram you have here, showing the truss, you would have to move this wall in, say here not in scale but then you’d still have this overhang right here?

Mr. Delesky: Right.

Ms. Drake: Eliminating this part of the overhang?

Mr. Delesky: Right, this is gone.

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Delesky: And this is what we would call it like a curtain wall, Joe?

Mr. Mattina: Right. 

Mr. Delesky: …called a curtain wall. Yeah, but this would be the trusses that would be outside.

Ms. Drake:  And then this overhang would still be here with this…with poles or something here on the end.

Mr. Delesky: Exactly.

Ms. Drake: But the rest of this portion will be gone?

Chairperson Cardone: And how many square feet would that involve?

Mr. Delesky: This would be…

Chairperson Cardone: No, no, no I mean this.

Ms. Drake: This area here. All of this up to this wall, 4 foot.

Mr. Mattina: 4 x 50. This area here would be 200 sq ft.

Ms. Drake: So it would be a variance for 200 sq ft plus the 1-foot height. 

Mr. Delesky: Well…

Ms. Drake: Because this would be the 1000 sq ft here?

Mr. Delesky: Enclosed. Correct. This would be like 200 feet outside with a pad.

Ms. Drake: So it would be a variance for 200 sq ft and a 1-foot height constraint versus the full variance.

Mr. Delesky: Do you consider this then the building here? That’s what you want the interpretation of whether that would be the building or not.

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: I think the feeling of the Board is you should resubmit.

Mr. Delesky: To Mr. Canfield and Mr. Mattina?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Yes, and they will deny it and it will make it’s way back to this Board.

Ms. Delesky: Lynne Delesky, 42 Prospect Hill Road, what about the process of sending out all the letters and doing the application fee and all that, is that have to be re-done also?

Mr. Donovan: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes that would have had to be re-done even if we just re-opened it, you would still have to do that.

Ms. Delesky: So that’s going to be like another $800 of applications?

Mr. Donovan: Whatever the cost, that’s correct.

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t know what the fee is.

Ms. Drake: But you’d have to do that anyway for reopening it. Re-opening it wouldn’t alleviate that.

Mr. Delesky: I guess the next step is these gentlemen and then back here.

(Time Noted – 10:14 PM)

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2007

END OF MEETING 
                                            (Time Noted – 10:15 PM)



Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other business? You have the minutes from the last meeting? 

Affirmative reaction.

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any additions, deletions, corrections? Do we have a motion to approve the minutes as corrected? 

Mr. McKelvey: I didn’t see any. I’ll make a motion we approve.

Ms. Drake: Second the motion. 

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor, please say Aye.

Aye All 

Mr. Manley Abstained.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No Response.


Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. Anything else? If not, this meeting closed until next month. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

ROBERT KUNKEL

JOHN MC KELVEY

JAMES MANLEY

 

RUTH EATON– ABSENT

DAVID DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 10:16 PM)

